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Communication with Those Charged with Governance under SAS No. 114

Honorabie Mayor and City Council
City of Scappoose

33568 E Columbia Ave.
Scappoose, OR 97056

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Scappoose (the City) for the year endad June 30,
2008, and have issued our report thereon dated January 18, 2009. Professional standards require that we provide
you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generslly Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in cur engagement lstter dated February 18, 2008, our responsibiiity, as described by professional
standards, s 1o express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in afi material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Pianned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you about
planning matters on June 2, 2008,

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting FPractices

Management is responsibie for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial staterments. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2008, We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during {he year for which there s a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
managemen!'s knowledge and experience abcut past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that fulure events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected, There
were no significant accounting estimates noted in the financial statements.

The disclosures in the financial stalements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. There were no
sensitive disciosures affecting the financial statements noted.

Gifficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumuiate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management
has corrected all such missiatements In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were matenal, either individually or in the aggregate. to the financial
statements taken as a whole

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to
the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have regquested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation tetter dated January 18, 2008,

Management Consultations with Other independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining & "second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves appfication of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulti ing accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To cur knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matiers, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors, However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention.

This information is intended sclely for the use of the Council and management of the City of Scappoose and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely yours,

GREGOR PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

o 7

( ) John Gregor, PMesident

Eugene, Oregon
January 19, 2009
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COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS
IDENTIFIED IN AN AUDIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAS 112

Honcrable Mayor and City Council
City of Scappoose

33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, OR 97056

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Scappoose, for
the year ended June 30, 2008, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
empioyees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstaterments on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results
in more than a remote likelihcod that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal controf was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and
would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as described above. However, we identified the following
deficiency in internal contro! that we consider o be a significant deficiency:

e Oversight of Financial Repoerting Process: Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controis and for the fair presentation of the financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and disciosures in the financial statements, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The City does not have a system of internaj
controls that would enable management to conclude the financial statements and related
disclosures are complete and presented in accordance with GAAP. Ag such, management
requested us to prepare a draft of the financial statements, including related footnote
disclosures. The outsourcing of these services is not unusual in cities of your size and is a result
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of management’s cost benefit decision to rely on our accounting expertise rather than incurring
this internal resource cost.

We greatly appreciate the cooperation and courtesy extended to us by the City officials and
empioyees during the audit.

This report is intended salely for the information and use of the Council and management of the City
and the State of Oregon, and is nct intended to be used and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

GREGOR PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

SN

U}ohn Gregor, President

Eugene, Oregon
January 19, 2009
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Scappoose

33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Scappoose (the City), Qregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
fimancial statements are the responsibility of the management of the City. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An gudit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used angd
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, gach
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2008 and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of
America.

The management’s discussion and anatysis and budgetary comparison infarmation on pages 26-
30 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
‘required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it. The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures appiied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whaole,
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Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the collectively comprised hasic
financial statements of the City. The other supplementary information is presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Those
statements and information have been subjacted to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
refation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

GREGOR PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

O John Gregor, Phasident

Eugene, Oregon
January 19, 2009



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



City of Scappoose
Management's Discussion and Analysis

The management of the City of Scappoose, Oregon presents this narrative overview and analysis
to facilitate both a short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. This Management's Discussion and Anatysis (MD&A) is based on
currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the independent
auditor's report. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which foliow
this section. In future years, comparative analysis will be provided as the information becomes
available.

Financial Highlights

The City’s Total Assets at June 30, 2008 are $ 58,704,747,
The City's Total Liabilities at June 30, 2008 are $8.272,830.
The net assets of the City (assets minus liabitities) at June 30, 2008 are $47,431,517. This

represents a decrease of $128,342. Net assets for the City at the beginning of the fiscal year
were $46 366,134,

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction ta the City's basic
financial statements and other required supplementary information. The City's basic financial
statements are comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide Financial Statements
2. Fund Financial Statements
3. Notes {o the basic financial statements

The information that is utilized in this section is provided in the annual financial report, audited
by independent auditors,

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business,

The Statement of Net Assets presents information all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financiai position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All charges in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that witl only resuit in
cash flows in future fiscal periods(e.g. uncoilected taxes, accounts receivable, grants receivable,
deferred revenue, accounts payable, and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principaily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant porticn of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities).



The governmental activities of the City include the following:

* General Government

= Community Development
+ Pubiic Safety

+  Pubiic Works

The Business-type activities of the City include the following:

e Water Utility
= Sewer Ultility

Fund financial statements A fundis a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: Governmental
funds and Proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the
ermphasis is placed on available financiat resources, rather than upon net income determination.
Therefore, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financiai
statements focus on the acquisition and use of current spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government's near-term requirements.

Because the focus of governmentat funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with simitar
information presented for governmentai activities in the government-wide financial decisions. By
doing se, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balanrces provide reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 13 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separataly in
the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Governmental Fund Balances for those funds that are considerad significant (major)
to the City taken as a whole, These financial statements report five major funds, the General
Fund, Building Fund, Street SDC Fund, State Street Tax Fund, and Parks SDC Fund. Data from
the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The City adopts an annuaf appropriated budget for ail governmental funds. To demonstrate
compliance with the budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided far major
governmental funds on pages 26-30.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is
placed on net income determination. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund known as
an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the governmental-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its water utility and sewer utifity operations.



Notes to the basic financial statements. The nctes provide additional information that is
essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financiai
statements. They are an integrat part of the financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with them.

Government-wide Financial Anaiysis

As earlier noted, net assets may over time serve as a usefui indicator of the City's financial

position. In the case of Scappoose, assets exceeded liahilities by $58,704,748 at the close of
FY'08.

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets { perceny) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e g. land, buildings, roads, vehicles and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Scappoose uses these capitai assets to provide
services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending uniess real
estate is sold. Although the City's investment in capital assets is reported as Net of Related
Debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to Hquidate these liabilities.

CiTY OF SCAPPOQSE NET ASSETS

2008 2007
{far the purpose of comparisen)
CURRENT AND OTHER ASSETS 511,378,458 $10.331,037
CAPITAL ASSETS 345,326,285 $46.855.289
TOTAL ASSETS $56,704,747 $57,188,326
CURRENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES 5 1,024,102 $ 859,082
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 8248728 $ 8767.008
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 9,272,830 $ 9626068
NET ASSETS:
INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS,
NET RELATED DEBT $ 36,942,015 $38,081,110
UNRESTRICTED $ 10,489 901 $ 9478148
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 56,704,748 $47.580,258

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
CHANGE IN REVENUES

The City's total revenues were $6.9 million, of this $2.3 million or 33 percent were from Charges
for Services, taxes and franchise fees were $2.2 million and accounted for 32 percent of
revenues, operating grants and contributions were $0.9 million and accounted for 13 percent of

revenues, capital grants and confributions were $1.0 million and accounted for 14 percent of
revenues.

The total cost of alf programs and services were $7.1 million; $4.8 million or 85 percant were for
Government Activities and 35 percent, or $2.5 mitlion, were for Busiress-Type Activities.



For the Year ended 06/30/08

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE TOTAL
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charge for Services 3 4231861 $ 1,905,311 3 2,328472
Cperating Grants &
Contributions $ 345809 3 535280 3 881,089
Capital Grants &
Contributions $ 501591 $ 480,853 $ 082 444
GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes, General 3 1327814 $ 1,327814
Property Taxes, Debt $ 1585853 $ 155553
Franchise Fees $ 347928 3 347,928
Pubiic Service Taxes $ 323591 3 323,591
Investment Earnings $ 241237 3 258,144 241,231
Miscellaneous 3 83,780 3 68 3 89,848
Transfers 3 (111,834 $ 111,834 3 0
TOTAL REVENUES $ 3,844,424 $ 3,289,490 3 6,933,614
PROGRAM EXPENSES
Government Activities
General Government $ 748273
Pubiic safety $ 1,502,588
Cultural and recreation $ 96,309
Highway and Streets $ 2,201,960
Interest, LT Debt 3 46,224
Business Activities
Water 3 1,546,484
Sewer 3 920418
TOTAL EXPEDITURES $ 4,595 354 $ 2,466,902 3 7,062,256

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

$ (128,342)



PROGRAM REVENUES
Charge for Services
Operating Grants &

Contributions
Capital Grants &
Contributions

GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes, General
Property Taxes, Debt
Franchise Fees
Public Service Taxes
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers

TOTAL REVENUES

PROGRAM EXPENSES
Government Activities
General Government
Public safety
Cultural and recreation
Highway and Streets
Interest, LT Debt

Businass Activities
Water
Sewer

TOTAL EXPEDITURES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

For the Year ended 06/30/07
{for the purpose of comparison}

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

$ 713,026
$ 555745

$ 751968

$1,179,520
$ 209,527
$ 354472
$ 335515
$ 205240
$ 28,163
$ (162,231)

$ 4,170,945

3 2,440,331
§ 1,398,942
3 105496
$ 261,348
5 51,131

§ 4257248

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
$1,5819,327
$ 866,847

$ 565,943

$ 177438
$ 52700
$ 182231

53,644 486

$1,489,703
§ 875605

$2,365,308

TOTAL

$2,532.383
$1,422 592

31,317,911

$1.179,520
3 209,527
5 354472
$ 335515
$ 382678
$ 80883
b

3

7,815,431

56,622,558

$1,192,875



Eund-based Financial Analysis

As praviously discussed, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related iegal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental furds is to provide information an
near-term inflows, cutflows, anc balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City's financing requirements. In particuiar, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds regorted combined ending
fund balances of $5,433,250, an increase of $416,217 in comparison with the prior year,
Approximately 87% of this total amount, $4,734,765 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which
is available for spending at the government's discretion, subject to reporting fund-type limitations,

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Atthe end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $2,298,453, while the total fund balance for
the General Fund was $2,302,195.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of infermaticn found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total unrestricted net assets are $5,042 428,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, actual revenues exceeded bucdgetary estimates and actual expenditures were
less than budgetary appropriations. The net change in general fund balances under budgetary
basis during the year was an increase of $71,455 and ending fund balances under budgetary
basis of General Fund was §2 234 084,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2008 was $45,326,289 {net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, right-of-way, buildings and improvements, improvements other than

buildings (such as parks and park improvements}, equipment, and infrastruciure {transpartation,
water, and wastewater).

Bonded Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term fiabilities of
$8,248,728. Of this amount, $915 667 represented outstanding bonded indebtedness,
Qutstanding bonded debt is general obligation bonds to finance the water facility. Net revenues
of the facility are pledged to the payment of the bonds, though the City Counci! has the authority
to levy taxes sufficient to make scheduled debt payments,



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

Buring the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the long-term impacts of the loca
economy were examined in conjunction with business decisions made by the City. The following
are the major assumptions used in developing the fiscal year 2009 budget.

¢ Interest rates on investmants will continue to be low and projected fo be not much
maore than 2.0%.

» Expectation that economic conditions wiil remain in decline.

» Property tax revenue is anticipated to increase 3% and with residential construction
in several new subdivisions there should be some new tax revenue from the new
homes.

+ Heaith benefits and liability insurance continue to increase above inflation.

Reqguests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to-

Jon G. Hanken
City of Scappoose
33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, OR 97058



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF MET ASSETS

June 30, 1008

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments % 5,347,984 ¢ 4,792,569 $ 10,140,953
Restricted cash deposits 31,873 57,015 128,888
Property taxes receivable 136,402 . 136,402
Accounts receivable 84,955 324,258 409,213
Notes receivable-Port of St. Helens - 527,099 527,099
Inventaries 6,593 29,310 35,902
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, where applicable, (Nate 28) 32,562,365 12,763,924 45 326,289
Total assets $ 38,170,172 % 18,534 575 $ 56,704,747
LYABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 35,358 % 45,611 % 81,870
Deposits payable 31,873 97,015 128,888
Deferred revenue-Port of St. Helens - 527,099 527,099
Accrued interest payable 18,456 116,089 135,545
Compensated absences payable 93,100 57,500 150,500
Noncurrent Hlabilities:
Due within one year 93,529 433,647 527,176
Due In more than one year 1,002,555 6,718,957 7,721,552
Total Habilities 1,275,872 7,996,558 9,272,830
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related dabt 31,446,828 5,495,191 36,942,016
Unrestricted 5,447,475 5,042,428 10,489,901
Total net assets 36,894,300 10,537,617 47 431,917
Total liakilities and fund batances: $ 38,170,172 % 18,534,575 § 56,704,748

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OQF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Net {Expenses) Revenues and

Program Reveanues Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capitat
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-typg
Functions /Programs Expenses Services  Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
Ganerat qoverntrent $ 48273 % 394,949 % 54,528 % 389650 s 239, 316) % - 3 [259,816)
Public safety 1,502,588 - 294,261 - {1,211,307) - (1,211,307
Cultural and recreatwon 96,309 - - 142,387 44,078 - 44,078
Highway and Streets 2,201,560 28,192 - 320,244 {1.853,524) - (1,853,524;
interest on fong-term debt 46,224 - - - {46,224} - (46,224}
Tatal governurental activitias 4,595 354 423 161 345,509 501,591 £3,124,793) - 13,324,793
Businass-type activities
wWater 1,546,484 884,771 505,636 281,623 - 125,546 125,546
Sewer 920,418 1,020,540 29, 644 199, 230 - 328 996 328,596
Total business-type activitios 2,466,302 1,985,311 535,280 480,853 - 454,542 454 542
Total Prirmary governmeant 3 7.062,256 4 21328472 % 261,089 % 983 444 (3,324,291) 454 542 12,870,351
Generat revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposas 1,327,614 - 1,327,614
Property taxes, levied for debt service 155,553 - 155,553
Franchise taxes 347,928 - 347,928
Public service taxes 323,591 - 321,591
Grants and conteibutions not restricted to spac#ic program - - -
Investment earnings 241,231 256, 144 497,375
Miscelisnegus 89,780 48 49,848
Transfers (111,834} 111,834 -
Total general revenues and transfers 2,373 863 360 046 2,741,909
Changes in net assets {950,930) 822,588 (£38,342}
Net assets-beginning 37,845,230 3.715026 46,366,134
Net assets-ending £ 36,894,300 § 10.537,617 $47,431,917

The accompanying rnotes are an integral part of these financial statermnents
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CITY OF SCAPPQOSE, OREGON
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

june 30, 2008

Streat Parks Qthar Total
General Building Street Tax SH¢ 5DC Govarnmentad Governmental
Fund Fund Eusd Fund Fund Funds Fundg
ASSETS
Cash andt cash gauivalents ¥ 2,314 065 % 465,998 ¢ 245 939 g MWGA09 % 588,604 5 1,583,663 & 5,347,984
Agstricted cash deposis 31,873 - - - - B 3,873
Proparty taxes recewabie 114,573 . - - 21,824 136,402
ACCoOUnts receivable 59,7893 . 20,575 - 4,587 14,955
Invantary 3,742 - 2,851 - - - 6,593
Tukat assets 3 2 444 051 % 465,998  § 269,265 § 709 B0Y % 588,504 4 L 13080 ¢ 5,667 AD7
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LiabHities;
Atcounts payable 3 19,830 % 9,837 3 4,555 ¢ -3 -4 1,437 % 35,359
Deposits payable 31,873 - - - - - 31,873
Deferred tax ravenue 9G,153 - - - - 17,172 107,125
Total liabilities 5 141 856 % 9837 3 4055 g -3 -4 13,308 3 174,557
Fund balances:
Resarved for:
Inventory 3,742 - 2,851 - - - 5,593
Debt service - - - - 588,604 101,288 691,892
Unreserved, reported in:
Generat Fund 2,298,452 - - - - - 2,298,453
Special Revanue Funds - 456, 161 2581 859 709,809 - 1,008,483 2436 312
Total fund baiances 2,302,195 456,161 264,10 709, 809 588,604 1,111,771 5,433,250
Total Habilities and fund balances: 5 2,444 051§ 465,998 § 269,365 % 706,809 s 588 604§ 1,130,000
Amaunts reported for govarnmental activities in the statement of nat assets are diffarent because:
Copital assets usad n the governmental actvites are not financ i3l resources and
therefore, are not regorted m the funds. 32,562,365
Other long-term assets are not avadable (0 pay for current period
expenditures and , therefore, are deferrad in the lunds. 107,325
Long-ternm Hablities, mciuding bonds payable, are not dus ang
payable in the current penod. and , therefore, are not reported m the funds, (1,208,640}
el assets of governmental activites(See Page 1} ] 36,864 200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents
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REVEMUES:

Propaty taxas
tcanses and faes
Finas and forfeits
franchise fees
Speciat assessments
Intergovernmmental
[nterest
Miscalanaous

Total evenues

EXPENDITURES:
Currant:
Generdi govemment
Bublic safety
Cultural and recreation
Highways andg stroaets
Debt service
Capital outiay
Contingendy
Total expenditures

Excess(daficrency) of revenues
ovear axpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Intarfund transfers in
Interfund translers out
Total other fmancing sources fuses}
Net changt in fund balancas

FUND BALANCES - July |

FUND DALANCES - June 30

depreciation expense, This is the amount by which

CITY Of SCAPPOOSE,CREGON

STATEMENT OF AEVEMUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLIND SALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Far the Yaar Endad June 10, 2008

Street Parks Othear Total
General Building Street Tax sDC sDC Governmental Governmental
Fungd Fund Fund Fund Funyg Funds Funds
$ 1,308,60% & = 3 - % - % =% 155,827 3% {464,432
102,038 276,587 28,192 320,244 i42,308 16,285 B85, 794
268,003 - . - - 23,278 291,281
347528 - - - - 347,029
- - - - - 34,5960 18,960
1iB,421 - 257,293 - - 2,405 178,119
94,495 24,923 10,943 41,238 24,310 42,713 244,332
89,780 - - - - - 8% 780
3,334,330 298,510 296,428 161,502 ta? 2GR 279,448 3,717,526
472,288 I2G,065 - - - 701,343
1,455 364 - . - - 25,170 1,480,534
84,051 - . - - 4,187 89,138
- 289,028 - - 9,028
. - - 58,213 47,804 211,7%7 115,814
31770 - 15,164 308,137 - 190,814 545,885
2,044 373 229,058 304,192 364 350 47,804 431,968 3,421 742
289,957 68 458 (7,764} {2,848) 119,494 {152 510) 115,784
242,669 5.600 . . - 381,73t 630,000
(4603,938) {9,403} (42,123) {9,454) (5, 544y (1,70%) 1529567}
{218 263) {4,203} (42,123) {9,454 {5,544} 380,026 100,433
1,588 85,252 {49,887) (12,202} 111,950 227,518 416,217
2,230,507 390,509 314 5597 722,111 474,654 884 255
- 2,302.1585 § 456 161§ 264,710 13 709,803 ¢ 580 604 § 1,118 77%
Amounts reported for govarnmental activities In the statemeant of activitias are different becausa:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expendit ures. However, in the staterment of actvities the cost
those assets 15 allocated over thew estimated useful lives and raported a5
capital outlays exceaded depraciation in the cument porked, £1,394,681)
Ravenues in the statemant of sctivitias that do not provide current flnancral resources
18,716

are not reported as revanues in the funds
Gavernmantal funds report debt (Inciuding bands and compensated absences pavanie)

principal payrmants as expenditures, Howevar, in the statemant of activites

this paymant 15 a decrease of long-tern debt.
Changes in net assets of governmantal activities (See Page 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statermeants
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, QCREGOM
COLUMBEA-COUNTY, UREGON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUMNDS

Juna 30, 2008

Busineas-type Activitias - Entarprise Fuads

Water

Alrpark Water Sawer Duteh Canyan

ASSETS
Current assetfs:
Cash and cash equivalents
Resiatted ©ash:
Mater deposts
Recavables:
Utiities
Not# from Port af Gt. Hebans
[nventory
Totai cument assers

Nancurrent assers!

Capikal assuets:
Land
Huddings
Infeastructum
Construction i progress
Vehicias
Coupment

Less accumaiated depreciation

Toral avn-cument assers

Total azsets

LIABILITIES

Current Habillties:
Accounts payabie
Deposits payabke
Deterred mvanye
Accrued aitarest payable
Leases payabie
Nates payable
Bonds payable

Total qurrent tabities

Noscurrent Babiities:
Compensated shsences
Leases payzable
Nates pavable
Bonds payable

Total non-curtent kabdties
Totat labikities

NET ASSETS
Invested i capital assets, net of
reiated dety
Uarestricted
Tatal net assets

Tatal fiabilities and net assets

Watar S0C Expangion  Improvemsnt Sewer SDC Expansian Water Line

Fund Rersarve Fund Fund Fund AeEarve Fund Aeplacemant Fund Tutals
$ 1,820,256 5 372,567 % TBI.SEE 5 445,517 1,538,249 5 234,842 5 4,792,869
37,015 - - - 17,015
177,916 - - L4n, 742 - 324,258
- - 527,094 - 527,099
28,785 - 545 - - 29,334
2,123.552 I3, 507 748,687 792 814 1,518,249 234 847 5,770,655
208,584 92,320 - - 300,906
1,390,779 - - 3,347,547 - - 4,732,826
4,495,052 148,550 - 1,888,226 94,087 - 7,030,925
437,747 0,777,115 - - - - 7,215,066
67,992 - - 51,366 - 129,358
1,148,517 - - 714,832 - - 1,863,349
14,442,039; 1354,126) - 13,711 668) (5,619) - (8,513 506)
3,706,574 6,571,791 - 2,392,125 93,472 - 12,761924
k3 3830126 ¢ 6,944 260 § 708 687 % 1184.939 5 1631721 3 234,842  § 18,534,575
10,104 - - 1¢,995 2.0 45,611
97,015 - - - . 37,015
- - 527.059 - - - 527,069
35,700 61,729 - 18,660 - - 116,089
5,135 - - 5,135 - - 10,279
. 174,561 - - - - 174,561
103,288 - - 145,528 - - 248,816
451,242 236,290 577,099 1689 318 - 25,512 1,220,464
36,100 - 21,400 - - 52,500
17,508 - - 17,508 . - 15.018
- 5,123,788 - - - - 9,123,788
1,212 888 - + 347, 305 1,564,193
1,266,496 5,123,708 - 386,213 - 6,776,497
1,517,738 $,360,078 S27,05% 565,531 - 23,512 1,995,058
2,332,055 1,211,675 - 1,857,989 93,472 - 5,495,191
1,980,133 372,507 181,588 760,419 1,518,249 209,230 5,042,426
4,312,388 1,584,182 183 Su8 2,618,308 1,831,721 209,330 10,532,617
$ 5,830,126 3 £ 344,260 3 708,687 ¢ 3184930 $§ La31,721 ¢ 214842 5 18,534 575

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Qperating rovanues
Charges for services
Infrastructure fees
Construction water
Miscellanacus mvenyes

Total vperating revenuas

Oparating axpansas;
Perspnal services
Cantractual services
Ut s
Repais and manidnadie
Cther supphes and expensesy
Insurance clams and expenses
Depmciation

Total operatng expenses
Cperating ngcome

Non-operating reveauds {expenses)
Interest income
Interast expense
Rewnbursement fom Port of St Helens
Tetal non-aperating revenues (expensas)

Income befare conlnbutions and transfers
Capital contabution
Transfer n
Fransfer out
Changes n net assets

Yolai net assers-beginning

Total net assets-endng

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE OREGON
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

for the Year Ended June 38, 2008

Business-type Activitias - Entorprise Fundsg

Water Airpark Water Sower Dutch Canyon
Water SDC Expanglon  Improvement Sewar SDC Expansion Waier Line
Fund Reserve Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Replacement Fund Tatals
% BE84,771 5 - - $ 1,020,541 % k] 31,905,312
277,535 221,%63 - 29,544 - 529,147
6,138 - - - - 5,138
68 - - - - 48
L 168,582 221,963 : 1,050,185 - - 2,346,660
G51.940 - - 431,99¢ - - 1,083,830
219,591 266,101 24,921 510,613
19,880 - 7,537 . 27,417
24,316 - - 56,895 . 83,211
78,134 - - 312,379 - - TG, 712
- - 781 - - i
174,093 173,847 - 87,479 3,006 - 418,125
5,168,154 173347 - 283 462 3,006 14,921 7,252 690
358 48,816 - 166,723 (3,008} (24,921} 187,979
81,415 18,110 57,140 23,106 63,136 10.837 256,144
{74,101} (106,161} - 33,9950} - {214,212)
- . 73,216 - . - 73,216
7,314 (87.851) 138,336 110 544} 53,136 10,837 115,148
7,872 {38.039) 130,356 156,079 62,130 {14,084} 363,118
152,710 - 50,697 . 199,210 - 407,637
219,134 95,331 31,752 160,360 - 5,040 3377
141,686} i01,867) (124, 106) (39,820) (11.353) {42,312 {420,144}
242,830 {3,971) 108,699 278.019 250,007 (51,398) 522,588
4,068 558 1,589,753 72,889 2,340,189 1,381,714 260 726 8,715,029
¥ 4,312,388 ¢ 1,584,187 § I8L588 s 1618408 ¢ 1671721 % 209,330 $ 10,537,417

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OREGON
COLUMBLIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the ¥Year Ended Jung 30, 2008

Husinesss«type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water

AlrpBary Water Sewer

Dutch Canyon

Water $BC Expansion Improvement Sewar S0C Expansion Water Line
Fund Reserve fund Fund Fund Resarve Fund Replacement Fund Tatals
CASH FLOWS FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts fmam customars and oihers 3 1,182,351 % 221,903 3% 3 1,020,726 % - % - % 2,425,040
Payments lo suppliecs and others (337,519} - . (185%,558) - . {691,097]
Faymanls tg amployees (647,840} - - (434,300 - (1,082,220
Mat cash provided by oparating activibies 196,972 121963 - 130,778 - 049,713
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Cperating subsides and transfers to other fungds 77,448 313,464 (72,3594} 121,949 (11,353) (37.312) 113,831
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPTTAL AND RELATER
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Froceeds from capiat dent 29,259 - 29,25% - 38,518
Canital conthibuton 157,710 - 50,657 - 199,230 407,637
Fancipal pad an capiat debe {105,528} (168, 106) - (143,810} - (417,244}
[nterest gakd on capidafl gebt 175,105 (508 478) - (38,009} - - {221,592)
et cash provided {used) by capdal and
miatdd fmancing activiting 6,336 (276,584} 30,697 {152 Jan; 169G, 110 {172,681
GASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of flxed assers {200,444} (23.357) - {34,902) {45,144} . {303,807
Rewrbursement from Part of St Helung - - 1L21& - - - 71,216
fnterest received 81,415 18,310 57,140 21,108 65,136 16,837 2he 144
Net cash provided by investing actwvdies {113 029} 15,007} 130,356 (11,596} 19,592 10,817 25,553
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 161,727 {26,164} 108,699 188,762 207 869 (26,475) 614,418
Batancas-begmning of the year 1,058 529 148,671 72,889 356,785 1,330,180 261,317 4, 178,551
Batances-end of Lhe year H 1.A20.256 ¢ 372,507 ¢ 131,588 ¢ B4% 527 & ¢ 538 Jag 1 234342 & 4 797 389
Reconciliation of operating income to cash provided (usad)
by operating activities
Operating income(loss) 5 158 % 48,816 3 - 5 166,723 % {3,008} s {24,921) s 187.970
Adjustment to recontie net incoine to net cash provided
{used) by operating activiies:
Depreciation 174,083 173147 - 87,879 3008 - 418,125
Change i assets and fabilites: .
Acgounts moevabias 13,839 - - {29,480} - - {15,621)
Inventones {3,232) - - sS¢ - - (3,1B2)
Accounts payabie 7.814 - - 8,088 - 24,921 4G,821
Compensated absences payable 4,100 - - {2 500} - - 1,600
Net cash provided by operating actlvitiag 3 196,672 3§ 221,363 § - 3 230,718 3§ - 5 - 3 649,713

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, GREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Scappoose operates under a charter granted by the State of Oregon in 1961, The City is
governed by the City Council, compoased of an elected Mayor and six elected council members. A
Councit -City Manager form of government ig allowed by the charter, where the City Council hires a
City Manager to administer policies and to coordinate the activities of the City. The heads of the
various departments, formed to provide various servicas, are under the direct supervision of tha City
Manager,

The City of Scappoose, Oregon, is a primary government, A primary government is a financial
reporting entity, which has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate and is fiscally
independent of other state and local governments. The City has considered all organizations for which
the City is financiaily accountabie, Financial accountability may be evidenced by the ahility to appoint
the voting majority of the governing body, and either it is able to impose its will on that crganization
or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose
specific burdens on, the primary government; or a fiscal dependency or intergovernmental
relationship so close that exclusion from the primary government would render the financial
statements incomplete or misleading. The City has determined that there is no component units
required te be included in these financial statements.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the staterment of
activities) repert information on the entire City. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by prdgram revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues inciude grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are raported instead as general
revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements,

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econemic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are proprietary funds financial statements, Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 3 liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing
of refated cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied,
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as scon as all eligibitity requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.



CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Yzar Ended June 20, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cant’d)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considerad to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabliities of the current period,
For this purpese, the City considers revenues to be availabie if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt servica expenditures are recorded only when payment is
due,

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are ali
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurahle and available only when cash is
received by the City,

The City reports the foliowing maijor governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund,

The Building Fund accounts for financial resources set aside for enforcing building, plumbing,
mechanical and fire and iife safety codes of the State of Oregon.

The State Street Tax Fund accounts for receipts for the state revenue sharing program, state gasoline
taxes, and interest. The monies are expended primarily for the repair and maintenance of City
roads.

The Street SDC Fund accounts for receipts from street development charges and the usage of such
resources.

The Parks SDC Fund accounts for the collection and expenditure of parks system development
charges,

The City reports the foliowing maior proprietary funds:

The Water Fund accounts for the operations of the City's water department. Primary revenues are
charge for services, sale of water to users, connection fees and interest on invested funds.

The Water SDC Expansion Reserve Fund coliects funds from developers to both pay for previous
excess capadity improvements and to have funds available to pay for future improvement needs
generated by development,

The Airpark Water Improvement Fund is used to pay for the debt service associated with the
wateriine constructaed along West Lane Road to the Scappcose Airpark,

The Sewer Fund accounts for the operation of the City's sewer department, Primary revenues are
charges for services and interest on invested funds.

The Sewer SDC Expansion Reserve fund coliects funds from developers to both pay for previous
excess capacity improvements and to have funds available to pay for future improvement reeds
generated by development.



CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Additionally, the City reports the fellowing fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are primarily operating funds that are derived from specific taxes or other
revenue sources, which are legaily restricted to finance particular function or activities.

Debt Service Funds account for the resources accumultated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term debt of goveramental and proprietary funds,

For proprietary funds, the City applies all applicable Governmant Accounting Standards Board (GASE)
guidance as well as the following proncuncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, uniess
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Statements and
Interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBs) of the Committee on Accounting

Procedure.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reparted as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from noncperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the City enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City recognize
revenues as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonaperating revenues and expenses,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The cash and cash equivalents include petty cash and change funds, demand deposits held by
financial institutions and deposits with the Local Government Investment Pool of the Oregon Short-
Term Fund, which is managed by the State Treasurer’s office. The Local Government Investment
Pool is managed in accordance with the “prudent person rule” and administrative regulations of the
State Treasurer, which may change from time to time. Eligible investments include U.S, Treasury
obligations, US Agency securities, bankers' acceptances, high grade commercial paper, and
repurchase agreements, all subject to certain size and maturity limitations. The pool has the general
characteristics of a demand deposit account in that investors may deposit additional cash at any time
and may withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. The City reports the fair value of
the position in the poo! ag the same as the value of the pool shares.
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont'd)

Z. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements cutstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either" due to/from other funds" or " advances to/from
other funds" on the funds financial statements. All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as "due to/from other funds".

Receivables are recorded on government wide and fund financial statements in accordance with the
policies enumerated in paragraph above.

Property taxes are levied and attach as an enforceable lien on property on July 1 of each fiscal year.
Taxes are payable in three installments on November 15, February 15 and May 15. A 3% discount is
aliowed for payment in full on November 15. Columbia County, Cregon, makes all assessments of
property vatue, and levies and collects the taxes for the City of Scappoose, and all other taxing
entities within the county.

For the current year, the City tevied taxes at the rate of 3.2268 per $1,000 of assessed value of all
taxable property within the City. Measure 50 establishes the permanent rate and atlows for an
increase of the assessed value of property of 3% per year,

The City also levied $241,007, which is exciuded from the fimitation, to cover general obligation
water and wastewater debt payments.

3. INVENTORIES

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed,

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant are equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individua! cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated usefu! life in excess of five years, Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure 20-30
Buiidings 40-50
Building improvements 45-50
Vehicles 5-7
Equipment 5-26
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year &nded June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont'd)

5. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATION

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other fong-term cbligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities and business-type activities, In governmental fund types, bond
discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Bond discounts and issuance costs
for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds-
cutstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method, Bond discounts are presented
as a reduction of the face amount of bonds payable whereas issuance costs are recorded as deferred
charges.

6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE

Vested or accumulated vacaticn leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources is reported as expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will
pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be liguidated with
expendable available financial resgurces are reported in the general long-term dabt account group.
No expenditure is reported for these amounts. Vested or accumulated vacation ieave of praprietary
funds is recorded as an expense and fiability of those funds as the benefits accrue to amployees. No
liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits,

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets are prepared and adopted, and expenditures are appropriated, in accordance with Oragon
Local Budget Law. Budgets are adopted on the cash-basis of accounting, which is not in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principies, but is an acceptable method for Oregon ‘Municipaf
Corporations under Oregon Local Budget Law. All anpual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The
City does not use encumbrance accounting.

On or before June 30 of each year, the City enacts a resolution approving the budget, appropriating
the expenditures, and fevying the property taxes. Prior to enacting this resolution, the proposed
budget is presented to the City Council for a budget hearing by a budget committee.

The budget is prepared by fund, department, activity and line item, and includes infarmation of the
past year, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year, Expenditures
may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the level of Personal Services, Material and Services,
Capitai Outlay, Debt Service, Contingency, or other expenditures for each fund, or for each
department of the General Fund, at the level of : Administration, Police, Parks and Grounds, and Nan-
Departmental. ‘

8. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
No expenditures exceeded the budgeted appropriations for major funds for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2008.
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2008 was as foliows:

Petty cash % 1,800
Deposits in financiat institution 217,864
Deposits in financial institution held for other parties 128,888
Deposits with state iocal government investment pool 5,921,289

$ 16,269,841

Deposits: Deposits with financial institutions are bank deposits. Oregon Revised Statutes reguire
the depcsitory institution to maintain on deposit with custodian bank collateral pool securities having
a value of not less than 25% of the outstanding certificates of participation issued by the pool
manager. At year-end June 30, 2008, the balance of the bank statements was $559,185, all of which
were covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized to the extent required by law.

Custodial credit risk - deposits: In the case of depasits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
fallure, the City’s depaosits may not be returned to it. In order to minimize this risk, Oregon Revised
Statutes require cash on deposits in any one bank not exceed federal depository insurance without

procuring collateral certificates of participation from the bank's pool manager.,

Investments: The City’s investments in the Oregon State Loca! Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
managed by the State Treasurer in accordance with the "prudent person rule” and administrative
rules that may be subject to change. The investments that make up the State Local Government Pooi
are those aliowed by Oregon Statute and the reported fair value of the investment is the same as the
value of the poot shares. The City's investments are internally pooled and are not subject to risk
categorization. “

Credit risk and Concentration of credit risk: State law limits investments in commercial paper and
corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations,
As of June 30, 2008, all of the City’s investments were in the Local Governmeant Investment Pool.
LGIP was unrated.
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CITY OF SCAPPQOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, CREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES QN ALL FUNDS (Cont'd)

B. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows:

Governmental activities
Capital assets, nol being depreciated:
Land

Capital assets, being depraciated:
Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Buiidings

Building improvement s

Fquipment

Vehicles

Tatal capital assets being depreciated:

Less accumuiated depreciation for:
Infrastructure ‘
Construction in progress

Buildings

Bullding improvements

Equipment

Vehicles

Totat accumuliated depraciation

Total caplal assets being depreciated,

Beginning Ending

Baiance Ingreasesg Decreases Balance
$ 77L,29% % 308,137 3 % 1,079,436
59,914,252 - 59,914,252
240,387 192,715 433,106
619,645 - 619,645
638,047 - 638,047
194,763 5,810 200,573
227,870 70,315 297,885
61,834,664 268,844 62,103,508
27,535,260 1,501,586 29,436,846
619,645 - 619,645
280,741 12,761 293,502
102,963 18,671 121,634
110 307 38,645 148,952
28,648,916 1,971,663 30,620,579
net 33,185,748 (1,702,819 31,482,929
$ (1,394,882} g $ 32,562,355

Governmental activities, capital asets, net  $ 33,957,047
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cont’d)

Beginning Ending
Balance increases Decroases Balange
Business type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Lang $ - 300,906 3 - % 300,906
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 4,737,826 - 4,737,826
Infiastructure 13,965,102 180,629 14,145,731
Construction in progress 30,466 42,312 72,778
Vehicles 64,614 64,744 129,358
Equipment 1,874,710 16,122 1,850,832
Total capital assets being depreciated 20,672,718 303,807 20,976,525
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,800,435 116,004 1,916,435
Infrastructure 4,539,162 295,898 4,839,060
Construction in progress - - -
Vehicles 57,833 8,333 86,166
Equipment 1,677,952 13,890 1,691,842
Total accurmulated depreciation 8,075,382 438,125 8,513,507
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 12,597, 336 {134,318) 12,463,018
Business type activities, capital assets, net § 12,898,242 3 (134,318) 3 12,763,924

Depreciation expense was charged to funds of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:

General governmeant $ 37,060
Public safety 27,367
Culture and recreation 2,380
Highway and streets 1,804,855

Total $ 1,971,663

Business-type activities:

Water $ 347,240
Sewer 90,886
Total 5 438,126
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cont'd)

C. LONG-TERM DEBT
1. COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE

The City has accrued earnéd vacation pay as outlined in Note I. The liahility for accrued vacation pay
at year-end for governmental activities was $93,100. For business Type activities, it was $57,500.

2. CAPITAL LEASES

FORD FINANCING MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY

The City has entered into five separate lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of
police vehicles and utility trucks with Ford Financing Motor Credit Company. The lease agreements
qualify as a capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date as part of the long-term
liabilities. The liability for capital ieases as of June 30, 2008 is $140,0G7.

Schedule of future deht service regquirement on the capital lease
(2005 Chevy Tahoe)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 6,885 946 7,831
2010 7,343 488 7,831

$ 14228 $ 1,434 $ 15,662

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the capital lease
(2006 Ford Victoria)l

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 7,940 470 8,410

$ 7940 § 470 § 8,410

Schedule of future debt service requireament on the capiral lease
{2007 Ford Victoria)

. Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 6,210 1,196 7.406
2010 6,585 821 7,406
2011 5,984 422 7,406

$ 19,779 % 2439 $ 22,218
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CITY OF SCAPPOQOSE _
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TG THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Cont'd)

Schedule of future debt service reguirement on the capital lease

(2008 Fard Rangers (3), F250. F350)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Totat
2009 16,489 4,763 21,252
2010 17,569 3,683 21,252
2011 18,720 2,532 21,252
2012 19,945 1,307 21,252
$ 72723 $ 12,285 4 85,008

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the capital iease

(2608 fFord Victoria)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal interest Totat
2009 7,940 1,582 9,522
2010 8,435 1,087 9,522
2011 8,962 560 9,522
$ 25,337 § 3,229 % 28,566
3. NOTES PAYABLE
The City has following notes payable cutstanding at year-end.
5 Borrowed Maturity Interest
Purpose from Loan date date Rates Balance
Water system QECDD Sep. 1998 Aug. 2017 5.33% $ 433,005
Water system OECDD Sep. 1997 Aug. 2017 6.00% 212,036
Water svstem QECDD July 1998 June 2018 4.74% 248,301
Aguatic and community center US Bank Nov. 2004 Oct. 2009 5.00% 528,186
Crown zellerbach proiect OTIB Aua. 2003 2019 4.00% 473,172
WTP Phase 182 QECDD Dec, 2602 2028 4.40% 1,572,707
Safedrinking water project OECDD Apr. 2004 2034 1.00% 3,725,642
Total $ 7,193,049
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cont'd)

Airpark Water Improvement Loan

The City entered loan contracts with the Oregon Economic Development Department to extend water

to the Scappoose Airport project. The loans are payable from Water and Sewer SDC charges and
payments from Port of St. Helens.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Airpark Loan

Year Ending  Sep. 1998 Aimark Loan Sep. 1997 Airpark Loan July 1998 Aimpark Loan Totals
June 30 Principal interest Princinal interest Principal inferest Principal interest
2008 36,502 23,686 19,932 12,722 18,489 12,013 74,923 48,421
2010 41,852 21,724 21,128 11,526 18,646 11,181 . 81,626 44 431
2011 42,222 19,464 22,395 10,259 23,813 10,332 88,430 40,055
2012 47,611 17,184 23,739 8.818 23 990 8,224 95,340 35,323
2013 48,030 14 566 25,184 7,480 24 179 8,084 97,373 30,140
2014-2018 216,788 30,771 58,678 13,938 139.184 21,678 455,650 66,379

3 433005 5 127305 $ 212038 § 64,843 5 248301 § 72512 § 853342 § 264,750

Aguatic and Community Center Loan Refinance

On November 18, 2004, the City entered a contract with US Bank National Asscciation to borrow
$600,000 for the purpose of building Aquatics and Community Center. The interest rate is 5%. The
unpaid balance as of June 30, 2008 is $528,186.

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the notes payable
Aguatic and community center {US Bank)

Year Ending '
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 21,662 26,143 47,805
2010 506,530 12,664 519,194

$ 528,152 ¢ 38,807 $ 566,999
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CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {(Cant’d)

Crown Zellerbach Project Loan

On November 8, 2002, the City entered a contract with State of Oregon, Department of
Transportation to construct of roadway with traffic signal and a signalized railroad crossing from US
30 to West Lane to improve truck access on to Crown Zellerbach Road. Total estimate project cost
$2,562,850 consisted of Oregon Transportation Investment (OTIA) grants $1,782,850 and the City's
matching fund $780,000. To cover this matching amount the City made a loan agreemeant in the
principal amount of $625,000(interest rate 4% ) with Qregon Department of Transportation on August
28, 2003. The unpaid balance as of June 30, 2008 was $ 473,172,

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the notes payable
Crown Zellerbach Project Loan{QOTIR)

Year Ending
June 30 Principa! Intarest Total

2009 37,202 15,011 56,213
2610 38,650 17,523 56,213
2011 40,238 15,975 56,213
2012 41,847 14,366 56,213
2013 43,521 12,692 56,213

2014-2018 245,153 35,912 281,065
2019 26,521 1,141 27,662

$ 473,172 $116,620 $ 589,792

WTP Phase 1 & 2 Loan and Safe Drinking Water Project Loan

On December 4, 2002, the City entered contract with Oregon Economic and Co%nmunity Development
Department {OECDD) for waste system improvement projects phase 1&2. Total estimated projects
costs are $6,974,000, which consists of water/wastewater grants $500,000, water/wastewater loan
$1,814,000 (interest rate 4,4%), Safe drinking water revolving loan $4,000,000 {(interest rate 1%),
including forgivable note $250,000 and the City 's matching fund $660,000,

As of June 30, 2008, the unpaid balance of the WTP phase 1 &2 loan was $1,572,707.

As of June 30, 2008, the unpaid balance of the Safa drinking water lcan was $3,725,624.
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMEBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

MOTE 3 - DETAILED NCTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cont'd)

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the notes pavable
WTP Phase 1 & 2 Lean(G02003)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal interest Total
2009 54,016 68,566 122,582
2010 54,287 56,945 121,232
2011 54,5493 65,154 119,747
2012 55,929 63,243 123,172
2013 60,286 61,085 121,371
2014-2018 337,812 268,213 606,025
2019-2023 421,599 187,173 608,772
2024-2028 530,185 77,612 607,797

$ 1,572,707 $857,991 $ 2,430,698

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the notes payable
Safe Drinking Loan(S03003)

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 120,545 37,256 157,801
2010 121,750 36,051 157,801
2011 122,968 34,833 157,801
2012 124,197 33,604 157,801
2013 125,440 32,361 157,801
2014-2018 646,266 142,739 789,005
2019-2023 679,233 109,772 789,005
2024-2028 713,882 75,123 785,005
2029-2033 750,296 38,709 789,005
2034-2036 321,065 4,979 326,044

$ 3,725,642 % 545,427 4,271,069
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CITY OF SCAPPCOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

MOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Cont'd)

4, GENERAL OBLIGATION 20NDS

The City issued general obiigation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of utility
system. General obligation bonds are direct obiigations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
government. These bonds generally are issued as 35 to 40 years serial bonds with equal amounts of
principal maturing each year. General obligation bonds currentiy cutstanding are as follows:

Bomowad Loan Maturity Interest
Purpose From Date Date Rates Balance
Water system (Water GO Bond) GMAC Feb. 1979  Feb. 2018 5.00% $ 422835
Sewer system (SPWF Waste Bond) QECDD Sep. 199 Aug. 2011 6.59% 425611
Sewer system (SPWF Bond Il) OECDD Nov, 1993 Qct. 2013 6.00% 39,364
Sewer system (SPWF Loan i) OECDD Nov. 1893 Oct. 2011 (.00% 27.857

Total $ 915867
Water GO Bonds Payable
In February, 1979, the City issued water go bonds to finance the water system construction.

Schedulfe of future debt service reguirement on the bonds pavahle
Water Go Bond

Year Ending
June 30 2rincipal Interest Total
2009 28,278 22,561 50,837
2010 29,626 21,211 50,837
2011 31,040 19,797 50,837
2012 32,5231 18,316 50,837
2013 34,073 16,764 50,837
2014-2018 196,364 57,821 254,185
2019-2020 70,935 9,772 80,707

$ 422,835 $ 166,242 $ 589,077
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CITY OF SCAPPOOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Cont'd)

SPWF Waste Bonds Pavable

The City issued SPWF waste bonds o finance the sewer system construction on Sep. 1991 and Nov.
1993,

Schedule of future debt service requirement on the honds payabla
SPWF Waste Bond

Year Ending SPWF Bond 1991 SPWF Bond il SPWF Loan ill Tetals
June 30 Principal interest Principat intarest Principat interest Principal interest

2009 132,921 28,038 5,643 2,382 6,564 - 145,528 30,400
2010 141,678 19,282 5,982 2,023 5,964 - 154,624 21,305
2011 151,012 9,948 6,341 1,664 6,564 - 164,317 11,613
2012 - B 6,721 1.284 6,965 - 13,686 1,284
2013 - - 7.125 881 . 7125 ast
2014 - - 7,552 453 - 7,852 453

$ 425611 § 57260 $ 392364 § 8667 5 27857 § - $ 452832 § 65936

5. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One vear

Governmental activities
Compensated absences payable $ 78,100 s 84,500 § {69,500} $ 93,100 -
Capital lease 61,756 - 70,315 {37,351} 94,720 35,194
US Bank nctes payable 548,835 - {20,644) 528,191 21,133
Crown zeflerbach notes payabie 511,045 - (37.873) 473,172 37,202
Governmentallactivities total 1,156,736 154,815 _ {165,368) 1,189,183 93,529

Business type activities
Compensated absences payable 55,900 44,600 (43,000) 57,500 -
Capital lease - 58,518 (13,232) 45,286 10,270
Airpark notes payable (Sep. 98} 469,183 - (36,178} 433,005 36,502
Airpark notes payable {Sep. 97) 229,443 - {17,407} 212,036 20,021
Airpark notes payable (July 98) 266,640 - {18,339) 248,301 18,489
Water Go bonds payable 449,823 - (26,988) 422,835 28,276
SPWF waste bonds payable (1) 550,317 - {124,706) 425,611 132,921
SPWF waste bonds payable (I 44,688 - (5,324 39,364 5,643
SPWF waste honds payable (III) 34,821 - (6,564} 27,857 6,964

WTF phase 1 & 2 notes payable (G03003) 1,621,461
Safe drinking water notes payahle {S03003) 3,844,394

(48,754) 1,572,707 54,016
(119,352) 3,725,642 120,545

Business type activities total 7,567,270 103,118 (460,244) 7,210,144 433,647
Total $8,767,006 $ 257,933 $(6256G12) $8,399,327 $ 527.176
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Cont'd)

D. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Major Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008, consisted of the following:

Transfer in
Nonmajor
General Building  Governmental Water
Transfer ocut: Fund Fund Funds Funds Total
General Fund - 2,240 357,700 - 359,540
Building Fund 9,803 - - - 9,803
Street Tax Fund 21,003 1,120 20,000 - 42,123
Street SDC Fund 9,454 - - - 5,454
Parks SDC Fund 5,544 - - - 5,544
Nonmajor Governmental -
Funds 1,705 - - - 1,705

Water Funds 50,350 1,120 - 152,083 203,553
Sewer Funds 43,812 1,120 4,031 - 48,963
Totals $ 141,671 ¢ 5600 g 381,731 $ 152,083 3 581,085

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend then, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
service from the funds coliecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments
become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

NQOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION

A. PENSION PLAN
1. PLAN DESCRIPTION

The City contributes to two pension ptans administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS). The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) appfies to the City's
contribution for qualifying employees who were hired before August 28, 2003, and is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan {OPSRP) is
a hybrid successor plan to the OPERF and consists of two programs. The Pension Program, the defined
benefit portion of the plan, applies to qualifying District employees hired after August 29, 2003, and to
inactive employees who return to empioyment following a six-month or greater break in service. Benefits
are calculated by a formula for members who attain normal retirement age. The formula takes into
account final average saiary and years of service. Beginning January 1, 2004, all PERS member
contributions go into the Individual Account Program (IAP), the defined contribution portion of the plan.
PERS members retain their existing PERS accounts, but any future contributions are deposited into the
member's IAP, not the member's PERS account.
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CITY OF SCAPPQOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Both PERS plans provide retirement and disability benefiis, post employment healthcare benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS is administered
under Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 238, which estabiishes the Public Empioyees Retirement Board
as the governing body of PERS. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to PERS, PO
Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-3700 or by calling 503-598-7377.

2. FUNDING POLICY

Members of PERS are required to contribute 6.00% of their salary covered under the plan, which is
invested in the OPSRP Individual Account Program. The City is required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at
an actuarialiy determined rate for the qualifying employees under the OPERF plan, and a general service
rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan. The employer contributions rates are based on
an actuarial valuation report dated December 31, 2007. The OPERF and the OPSRP rates in effect for
the year ending June 30, 2008 are 13.76% (OPERF) and 13.77% (OPSRP - General Service) and
17.04% (OPSRP ~ Police and Fire), respectively. The contribution requirements for plan members are
established by ORS Chapter 238 and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature.

3. ANNUAL PENSION COST

The City’s contributions to PERS for the years ending June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $336,101,
$324.,408 and $294,241 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

B. OFFICE LEASE

On November 12, 2007, the City entered into 5-year iease agreement with Brian Rosenthal to rent
office space at 52610 N.E. 1™ Street, Units 120 and130 in Scappocse, Oregon: On March 1, 2008,
the City added Unit 110 at the same address to the lease agreement. The City is billed $1.10 per
square foot for the first year, increasing $0.03 per square foot each year of the lease agreement. For
the year ended June 30, 2008, rent expense was $21,977 and security deposits were paid in the
amount of $6,631.

Scheduie of future debt service requirement

Year Ending Space Space
June 30 120/130 110 Total
2009 29,284 11,1358 40,420
2010 30,056 11,438 41,482
2011 30,840 11,737 42,577
2012 31,450 12,005 43,455
2013 10,542 8,092 18,634
Total $ 132,172 % 54,406 % 186,578
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CITY OF SCAPPQOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (Cont'd)

C. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivabie from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disaliowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amcunt, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
agencies cannot be determined at this time although management expects such amounts, if any, to
be immaterial. '

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably being estimatad.

Management has represented that there are no other contingent Habilities which were understood to
include among other things: notes or accounts receivabie which have been discounted; pending suits,
proceedings, hearings, or negotiations possibiy involving retroactive judgments or claims; taxes in
dispute; endorsements or guarantees; and options given that would require disclosure.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is operated under various risks and the City participates in various insurance programs to
hedge against those risks. The insurance coverage include property liability, general liability, ethics
complaint defense liability, pesticide/herbicide application liability, auto liability, boiler, pressure
vessel, mechanical and electrical objects liability and others. There have been no losses in excess of
insurance coverage for the past three years.
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBLA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budget to GAAP

Budgeted Amounts Diffarences

Actual Amounts Actual Amounts

QOriginal Final Budgetary Basis Over (Under) GAAP Basis
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 1,192,360 $ 1,192,360 s 1,310,495 (1} % {1,891) 3 1,308,605
ticenses and fees 189,000 389,000 370,101 - 370,108
Franchise fees 305,000 365,000 334,491 (1) 13,438 347,929
Intemjovernmental 148,300 108, 300 123,708 (1) (5,288) 118,420
Intecest 104,000 100,000 99,495 - 99,445
Miscellaneous 65,500 65, 50 89,780 - 86, 780}
Total revenues 2,160,160 2, 160, 160 2,328,071 5 259 2,334 330
EXPENDITURES:
Admimstrative 455,830 455,830 364,640 (i) £38) 364,552
Planning 124,854 124,854 119,958 {1) {606} 119,352
Pokice 1,387,361 1,387,361 1,26Q,222 {1} 8,445 1,268,667
Caurt 764,575 264,675 204,670 (1) (2,363) 204,307
Parks 121,292 121,292 88,866 {1} 629 89,495
Contingency 480,583 480,583 B - -
Totat expenditures 2,834,565 2,834,595 2,038,356 5017 2,044 373
Excess(deficiency) of ravenues over expend (674,435} {674,435} 289,715 242 289,957
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Operating transfaers in 242,669 242,669 242 669 - 242,669
Operating transfers out (460,938) (460,938} {460,938) - (450,938}
Total other financing sources and uses (218,269} (218,26%9) {218, 269) - {218,260}
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expendityres and other uses (892,704) (892,704) 71,445 242 71,688
FUNE BALANCES - July 1, 1892 704 1,892 704 2,162,619 (2} 57 8588 2,230,507
FUND BALANCES - Jurta 30 $ 1000000 $ 1000000 3 2,234,064 $ 68,130 3 2,302,195

Explanation of differences:
{1) The City budgets revenues anly to the extant expectad to be received, rather than
on the modified accruai basis. $ 6,259
The City budgets expenditures anly to the extent expected to be paid, rathar than

on the modified agcrual basis, (6,017)
Net increase in fund balance-budget to GAAP $ 242

(2} The arnount reported as "fund balance” on the budgetary basis of accounting derives from the basis of
accounting used in preparing the City's budget, {See Note 2 fora description of the City's budgetary
acceunting method.} This amount differs from the fund balance reported in the statemant of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances because of the cumylative affect of transactions such as
those described above,

See Report of [ndependent Auditors

26



CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAL

BYUILDING FUND

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2008
Budget to GAAP

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Differences  Actual Amounts
Originai Final Budgetary Basis Over{Under) GAAP Basis
REVENUES;
Taxes $ - % - % - % - % -
Licenses and foes 206,400 206,400 276,587 B 276,587
Franchise feas - - - - -
Intergovernmeantal - - - - -
[nterest 8,000 8,000 21,923 - 21,923
Miscelaneous 200 200 ~ - -
Total revenues 214,600 214,600 298,510 - 298,510
EXPENDITURES:
Pemonal services 182,574 170,074 128,880 - 128,880
Materials and services 81,250 91,256 81,863 (1) 8,940 30,803
Capital outlay 7,000 9,500 5,371 - 9,371
Contingency 215,656 215,654 - - R
Total expenditures 486,480 486,480 220,115 . 8,940 229,055
Excess(deficiency) of revenues ovar expend (271,880) {271,880} 78,195 {8,940) 69,455
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES):
Cperating transfery in 5,600 3,600 5,600 - 5,600
Cperating transfers out {9,803) (9. 803) {9,803) - (9,803}
Total other financing socurces and uses {4,203} {4,203) (4,200} - {4,203)
Excess of revenues ang other sources over
(undar) expenditures and other uses {276,083) {276,083) 74,192 (8,940) 65,252
FUND BALANCES - July 1 276,083 276 083 391,806 ¢2) {Ba7 390,909
FUND BALANCES ~ June 30 $ -3 - 465,958 3 {9,837) ¢ 456,161

Explanation of differances:
(1} The City budgets revenues anly to the extent expected to be received, rathar thaa

on the rmedified accrual basis, $ -
The City budgets expenditures only to the extent expecled to be paid, rather than

on the modified accrual basis, 8,940
Net increase in Fund ba#"anr:e-budget to GAAP $ (8,930}

{2} The amount reported as "fund balance” gn the budgetary basis of accounting detivas from the basis of
accounting used in praparing the City's budgaet, (See Note 2 for a description of the City's budgetary
accounting mathod.} This emcunt differs from the fund balaace reperted In the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances because of the cumulative effect of transactions such as
those described abova,

See Report of Independent Auditors
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CITY GF SCAPPOQOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STATE STREET TAX FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Budget to GAAP

dudgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Differences  Actuatl Amounts
Original Final Budgetary Basls Over(Under) GAAP Basis
REVENUES:
Surface trans program funds H 214,539 % 214,539 - % - % -
ticenses ang fees 50,000 50,000 28,162 - 28,192
Franchise fees - - - - .
Intergovernmental 265,375 265,375 258,533 (1} {1,241) 257,291
interest 16,700 10,700 10,943 - 10,947
Miscelaneous 500 560 - - -
Toral revenues 4t 114 541,114 297 669 (1,241} 296,428
EXPENDITURES: _
Parsonal services 189,132 189,132 155,367 - 155,367
Materiafs and serviges 155,411 155,411 130,649 (1) 3,812 133,661
Capitat gutlay 247,950 217,950 15,164 i 15,164
Contingency 1494 825 194,825 - - -
Tatal expenditures 757,318 757, 318 301 180 3012 304,182
Excess{deficiency) of revenues aver expend (218 204) (216,204} (3,511} (4,253} {7,764)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in g - B - -
Operating transfars out {42,123} {42,123) f42 123) - (42,121
Total other flnancing sources and uses {42,123) {42,123} (42,123) - (32,123)
Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under} expenditures and other uses (258,327} {258,327) {45,634} {4,253} {45,887}
FUND BALANCES - July 1 258,327 258,327 291,475 (2) 23,122 314,597
FUND BALANCES - June 30 $ - % - 3 245,841 5 18,869 3§ 264,710

Expianation of differencas:

(1} The City budgets revenues oniy to the extent expected to be received, rather than
on the modified accruail basis,

% {1,241)

The City budgats expenditures anly to the extent expected to be paid, rather than
on the modifled acerual basls, {3,012)
Net Increase in fund balance-budget (o GAAP § (4,253)

{2} The amount reported as "fund balance” an the budgetary basis of accounting derives from the basis of
accounting used in preparing the City's budget, (See Note 2 for a description of the City's budgetary
aceounting method,) This amount differs from the fund balance reported In the statement of revenyes,

expenditures, and changes in fung balances because of the surmulative effect of transactions such as
those described above,

See Report of Independent Auditors
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDYTURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -8(U0GET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES:
Taxes
Licenses and fees
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Persenal services
Materials and services
Capitai outlay
Cebt service-
Poncipal
intergst
Contingengy

Total expenditures
Excess(deficlency) of revenues over expend
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Operating transfery in
Cperating transfers out

Tatal other flnanting sources and uses

Excess of revenues and other sources gver
{under) expenditures snd other uses

FUND BALANCES ~ Juily 1

FUND BALANCES - June 30

STREET 5DC FLUND

For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Actuai Amaounts

Budget to GAAP
Differences

Actual Amounts

Original Final Budgetary Basis Gver{Under} GAAP Basis

-3 - % - 3 - % .
189,070 189,070 320,294 - 320,244
30,000 30,000 41,258 - 41,258
219 070 215,070 361 502 - 361,502
500,000 500,000 308,137 - 308,137
35,110 35,110 37,873 - 37,873
21,103 21,103 18,340 - 18,340
56, 820 36 820 - - -
613,033 613,033 364,350 - 364,350
{393,963) {393,963) {2,848) - (2,848}
(9,454} (9,454} (9,454} - {3,454)
(9,454) (G 454) {9,454) - (9,434}
{(403,417) (403,417) (12,302} - {12,202)
403 417 403,417 722,111 - 722,111
- % - § 709,809 s - 3 709,809

See Report of Independent Auditors
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CITY OF SCAPPQGSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT GF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PARKS SDC FUND

For the Year €nded June 30, 2008
Budget to GAAP

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Differences  Actual Amounts
Original Finat Budgetary Basis Over{tUnder) GAAP Basis
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental % - % - % - $ -8 .
Licenses and fees 110,880 110,880 142,387 - 142,387
Intarest 20,000 20,000 24,910 - 24,910
Miscellaneous y - - " .
Total revenuas 136,880 130,880 167,297 - 167,257
EXPENDITURES:
Persanal services - - - -
Materals and services - - -
Debt service-
Principai 20,395 20,395 20,649 - 20,649
Interast 27,409 27,409 27,155 - 27,155
Capital outiay 275,000 275,600 B - -
Contingency 85 31§ 85 315 - .
Total axpanditurag 409 119 409,119 47.804 - 47,803
Excess(deficiency) of revenues over expend {278,2139) (278,236} 119 494 - 119,454
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Operating transfers in - - - - -
Operating transfers out (5,544; (5,544) {3,544) - (5,544;
Total other financing scurces and usas {5,544} (5,544) (5,544} - {5 544)
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures and othar uses {283,783} (283,783} 113,950 - 113,950
FUND BALANCES - July 1 283,783 283 783 474 654 - 474,654
FUND BALANCES - Junae 30 ¥ - % - 3 588,604 $ - % 588,604

See Report of Independent Auditors
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CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Ameunts {Negative)
Personal Services
Administration
Salaries 31,067 & 31,007 4 60
Health insurance 6,470 4,760 1,710
Retirement benefits 5,471 6,169 (698)
Social security 3,073 2,372 701
Warker's compensation 287 244 43
Total administration 46,368 44,552 1,816
Police department
Salaries 636,742 637,739 (997}
Overtime 33,584 38,079 (4,495}
Health insurance 193,351 147,189 48,162
Retirement benefits 146,253 132,069 14,184
Sociat security 87,674 51,700 35,974
Worker's compensation 29,084 22,799 6,288
Total police department 1,126,688 1,029,575 97,113
Parks & grounds
Salaries 45,541 44,338 1,203
Health insurance 11,417 8,346 3,071
Ratirement benefits 9,048 8,610 438
Social security 5,557 3,392 2,165
Waorker's compensation 1,724 1,358 366
Total parks & grounds 73,287 66,045 7,242
Municipal court
Salaries 39,397 39,842 {445)
Health insurance 9,015 7.146 1,869
Retirement benefits 7,723 7,928 (205)
Social security 4,796 3,048 1,748
Worker's compensation 524 462 52
Total court 61,455 58,426 3,629
Planning
Salaries 32,092 32,683 {591)
Health insurance 7,582 4,360 3,222
Retirement benefits 6,312 6,392 (80}
Sociat security 3,840 2,500 1,340
Warker's compansation 358 338 63
Total planning 50,224 46,270 3,954
Total Personal Services 1,358,022 1,244,869 113,153

{to be continued)



CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 (continued)

Materials and Services
Administration

Building/Facilities maintenance
Building lease

Equipment maintenance
Maintenance agreements
Vehicle maintenance

Office supplies

Utilities
Contractual/Professional
Elections

Miscellaneous

Insurance

Travel/training
Dues/fees/subscriptions
Econcmic development
Publications/notices/advertisement
Emergency management
Community contributions

Total administration M&S

Police department

Bullding maintenance
Building lease

Equipment rmaintenance
Maintenance agreaments
Vehicle maintenance
Office supplies
Operational supplies
Utilities
Contractual/Profassional
Miscelianegus

Medical mandates
insurance

Travel/training
Dues/fees/subscriptions
Publications/notices/advertisemeant
Uniforms

Special investigation
Leased cars

Total police department M&S

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)

51,550 42,969 8,581
- 55 (65)

250 - 250
11,800 8,206 3,594
2,500 767 1,733
11,360 9,804 1,536
12,240 12,668 {428}
75,000 40,802 34,198
3,000 - 3,000
600 {3,001} 3,601
136,000 123,457 12,543
12,700 10,897 1,803
17,044 15,582 1,462
25,000 5,064 19,936
5,600 2,365 3,235
6,818 6,818 -
30,000 38,000 (8,800}
401,462 314,463 86,999
27,000 7,196 19,804
- 2,026 {2,026)

2,480 2,299 161
3,905 1,393 2,512
€9,327 43,058 28,269
8,000 9,530 {1,530}
5,178 10,035 {4,857)
23,498 26,855 (3,357)
36,800 56,287 {19,487}
300 512 {212}
1,390 - 1,390
9,500 7,181 2,319
1,085 1,348 (263)
825 1,528 (703)
12,062 11,270 792
2,000 2,289 {289)
32,648 33,169 (521}
235,978 215,976 20,002
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2008 {continued)

Parks department
Building/Facilities maintenance
Building lease
£quipment maintenance
Maintenance agreements
Vehicle maintenance
Fuel, off, lube
Office supplies
Ogperational supphes
Shop maintenance supplies
Utilities
Contractual/ Professionat
Miscellaneous
Insurance
Travel/training
Dues/fees/subscriptions

Publications/notices/advertisement

Uniforms/safety/equipment
Totai Parks department M&S

Municipal court

Building/Facilities maintenance

Buliding lease

Equipment maintenance

Maintenance agreements

Office supplies

Utfities

Contractual/professional

Miscellaneous

Insurance

Travel/training

Dues/fees/subscriptions

Publications/notices/advertisements

Jad/jury
Assessments
Total court M&S

Planning

Building/Facilities maintenance

Building lease

Equipment maintenance

Maintenance agreements

Vehicle maintenance

Fuel, of, lube

Office supplies

Utilities

Contractual/professional

Contract project planner

Miscellaneous

Travel/training

Dues/fees/subscriptions

Publications/notices/advertiserment

Total planning M&S
Total materials and services

Capital Outlay
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)

1,000 372 628
- 166 {166}
1,500 1,661 {161)
640 449 191
1,800 1,426 374
2,185 1,801 384
560 555 5
5,870 3,361 1,708
250 25 225
2,400 3,705 {1,308)
18,500 3,38 15,149
250 - 250
2,000 - 2,000
500 339 161
300 412 (112)
250 259 {9)
500 398 102
37,708 18,278 13 427
800 459 341

- 167 {187}

3,380 3,007 373
3,260 2,331 865
1,620 5,232 (4,212)
96,780 70,592 20,188
100 - 106
1,000 1,139 {139}
330 315 75
- 36 (36)

550 - 550
100,000 82,027 37,973
201,220 145 305 55,615
1,000 4,074 {3,074)

- 7,730 (7,730}

3,600 3,481 (481)
3,600 54 3,542
740 138 602
2,600 3,161 (561)
3,540 4,212 (672)
41,200 26,399 14,801
- 11,747 (11,747}

250 17 233
1,500 1,218 282
5,200 469 4,731
6,000 4,991 1,009
68,630 67,696 934
G944 995 761,717 183,278
50,995 31,769 19,226
484 583 ~ 480 583
% 2,834,595 & 2,038,356 ¢ 796,239
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES -~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PARKS & RECREATION RESERVE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Interest on investments $ 15,000 $ 14,834 $ (166)
Total revenues 15,000 14,834 {166}
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - . -
Materials and services - - -
Capital outlay - - -
Contingency - - -
Total expenditures - - -
Net change in fund balance 15,000 14,834 {166)
Fund balances - beginning 331,739 332,581 842
Fund balances - ending $ 346,739 % 347,415 g 676
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMEIA COUNTYY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOOT PATHS & BICYCLE TRAILS FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Fina! Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovemmental $ 2,680 8 2,417 % (263)
interest on investments 2,500 2,611 111
Total revenues 5,189 5,029 (151)
EXPENDITURES;
Personal services - - -
Materials and sarvices - - .
Capital cutlay 45,000 2,035 42,965
Contingency 5,929 - 5,829
Total expenditures 50,929 2,035 48,894
Net change in fund balance {45,749) 2,994 48,743
Fund balances - beginning 45,749 53,527 7,778
Fund balances - ending 3 - % 56,520 3 56,520
Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Accounts recejvable 208
Fund balance {GAAP basis) $ 56,728
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES -~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HAVLIK HIGHWAY 30 FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Finai Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 160,000 3 - $ {160,000)
Interest on investments 6,000 4,105 {1,895
Total revenues 166,600 4,105 (161,895)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services - - -
Capital outiay 258,728 70,063 188,665
Contingency - - -
Total expenditures 258,728 70,063 188,665
Net change in fund baiance {92,728) {55,558) 26,770
Fund balances - beginning 92,728 138,162 45,434
Fund balances - ending $ - $ 72,205 % 72,205

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Accounts pavable {420}
Fund balance (GAAP basis) 3 71,785
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Interest on invastments $ 2,500 3 1,828 (672}
Total revenues 2,500 1,828 (672)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services 10,000 - 10,000
Materials and services - - -
Capital outlay - - -
Contingency 33,558 - 33,558
Total expenditures 43,558 - 43,558
Net change in fund baiance {41,058} 1,828 42,886
Fund balances - beginning 41,058 40,991 {67)
Fund balances - ending $ - % 42,819 42,819
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMEIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MUNICIPAL PARK FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)

REVENUES:
Park revenua $ 500,000 % - % {500,000}
Interast 3,500 7,567 4,067

Total revenues 303,500 7,567 (495,933)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services - - -
Capital outlay 854,000 122,656 731,344
Contingency - - -

Totat expanditures 854,000 122,656 731,344
Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures {350,500) (115,089 235,411
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES):
Transfers in 356,000 350,000 -
Transfers out - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 350,000 350,000 -
Net change in fund balance (500) 234,911 235,411
Fund balances - baginning 500 78,934 78,434
Fund balances - ending $ -~ % 313,845 % 313,845

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Accounts payable {513}
Fund balance {GAAP basis) % 313,332
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MUNICIPAL SKATE PARK FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Pasitive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Skate park revenue $ - $ - $ -
Interest on investments 1,500 1,300 (200}
Total revenues 1,500 1,300 {200)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services - - -
Capital cutlay 15,000 - 15,000
Contingency 15,587 - 15,587
Tatat expenditures 30,587 - 30,587
Net change in fund balance (29,087 1,300 30,387
Furd balances - beginning 29,087 29,139 52
Fund balances - ending $ - % 30,439 % 30,439
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

STORM DRAIN SDC FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Pasitive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)

REVEMNUES:
SDC fees $ 34,08¢ ¢ 38,960 % 4,870
Interest, 2,000 1,589 (411)

Total revenues 36,090 40,549 4,459
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - .
Materials and services - - -
Capital outlay 15,000 - 15,000
Contingency 39,385 - 39,385

Total expenditures 54,385 - 54,385
Excess of revenues over
{under) expenditures (18,295) 40,549 58,344
OTHER FINANCING SGURCES {USES):
Transfers in 20,000 20,000 -
Transfers out {1,705} (1,705) -

Tetal other financing sources (uses) 18,295 18,295 -
Net ¢hange in fund balance - 58.844 58,844
Fund balances - beginning - - -
Fund balances - ending % : - 3 58,844 % 58,844
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SCAPPOOSE STATION PAVILION FUND

For the Year £nded June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES:
Farmer's markat revenue $ 40,000 ¢ - 3 {40,000)
Farmer's market grant 40,000 - (40,003)
Interest on investments 1,200 181 {1,019
Total revenues 1,200 181 {81,019)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services - - -
Capital outiay 86,200 5,172 81,028
Contingency - - _ -
Total expenditures 86,200 5,172 81,028
Net change in fund balance (5,000} (4,991) 9
Fund balances - beginning 5,000 4,951 (%)

fund balances - ending $ - § - § -




CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PEG FEE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Pasitive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Feg fees % 12,500 3 15,338 & 2,838
{nterest on investrents 1,500 1,777 277
Total revenues 14,000 17,116 3,116
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services - - -
Capital outlay 15,000 - 15,000
Contingency 31,330 - 31,330
Total expenditures 45,330 - 46,330
Net change in fund balance (32,330} 17,116 49,446
Fund balances - beginning 32,330 32,786 456
Furd balances - ending $ - % 49,902 & 45,902

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Accounts recejvable 4,379
Fund balance (GAAP basis) 3 54,281
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WATTS HOUSE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REVENUES:
Watts House donations
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Contingency

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under} expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

Transfers gut
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balances - baginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Accounts payable
Fund balance (GAAP basis)

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Pasitive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
% - - -
100 330 230
100 33¢ 230
7,800 4,083 3,737
7,800 4,063 3,737
{7,700} (3,733 3,967
7,700 7,700 -
7,700 7,700 .
- 3,967 3,967
- 2,072 2,072
$ - 6,036 6,039
{(204)
5,835
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE QF REVERNUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSESSMENT FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Municipal court assessments 5 25,000 % 23,278 % {1,722}
Interest on investments 1,000 ' 1,343 343
Total revenues ' ~ 26,000 7 24,621 {1,379)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal services - - -
Materials and services 25,700 25,17G 530
Capitat outlay - - -
Contingency 26,000 ~ 26,000
Total expenditures 51,700 25,170 26,530
Net change in fund balance {25,700} {550} 25,150
Fund balances - beginning 25,700 27,554 1,854
Fund bafances - ending $ - % 27,005 % 27,005
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CITY OF SCAPPOGSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER/SEWER GO BOND FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budgat
Final Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES;
Property taxes $ 229,700 $% 152,293 % (77,407}
Interest on investments 8,000 5,237 {2,763)
Total revenues 237,700 157,530 {80,170}
EXPENDITURES:
Debt Services:
Water-Principal 26,988 26,988 -
Water-interest 23,848 23,849 (1)
Sewer-Principal 124,706 124,706 -
Sewer-Interest 36,255 36,254 1
Contingency 184,261 - 184,261
Totat expenditures 396,058 211,757 184,261
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures {158,358) (54,267 104,091
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 4,031 4,031 -
Transfars out - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,031 4,031 -
Net change in fund balance {154,327 (50,236} 104,091
Fund balances - baginning 154,327 148,872 (5,455)
i
Fund balances - ending % - % 98,636 § 98,5636

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:

Property taxes receivabile 21,824
Deferred revenue (17,172
Fund balance (GAAP basis) 4 103,288
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CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WATER FUND

Far the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative}
Revenues
Charges for services 3 873,480 ¢ 937,148 § (36,332)
Infrastructure fees 196,440 245,139 48,699
Miscellaneous 1,000 68 (932}
Interest income 70,000 81,415 11,415
SBC charges 74,900 157,710 82,810
Total Revenues 1,315,820 1,421,480 105,660
Expenditures
Personal services
Salaries 463,198 420,503 42,295
Cvertime 5,101 3,653 1,448
Health insurance 128,822 93,128 35,794
Retirement benefits 92,874 83,576 9,398
Social security £8,529 32,479 26,050
Worker's compensation 18,003 14,102 3,901
Total Personal Services 766,727 647,841 118,886
Material and services
Building/facilities maintenance 26,192 11,286 14,906
Building lease - 4,136 (4,136)
Equipment maintenance 5,850 8,229 (2,379)
Maintenance agreements 2,355 1,616 739
Vehicle maintenance 8,800 7,554 1,246
Fuel/oil/lube 6,250 5,488 762
Office supplies 8,465 6,088 2,377
Operational supplies 37,729 36,587 1,142
Shop maintenance supplies 650 452 198
Lab supplies 1,5C0 1,117 383
Chemicals 22,665 14,860 7,805
Electricat operation-treatment &0,000 51,960 8,040
Utilities 24,660 19,883 4,777
Electrical operation-pump 13,200 7,135 6,065
Contractual/professional 132,968 111,141 21,827
Miscellaneous 500 19 481
Travel/training 7,408 7,826 (521}
Dues/fees/subscriptions 3,875 3,597 278
Publications/notices/advertisement 4,500 2,089 2,411
Uniform safety 4,650 4,087 563
Equipment rental 2,000 1,884 116
Total Materials and Services 374,214 307,135 67,079
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WATER FUND (Cont'd)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Capital outlay 545,000 163,080 381,810
Total Expenditures 1,685,941 1,118,066 567,875
Excess(deficiency) of revenue
over {under) expenditures {370,121} 302,413 {462,215}
Contingency {1,137,178) - 1,137,176
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (141,586) {141,686} -
Net income(loss) (1,648,983} 161,727 1,810,710
Fund Net Assets-Beginning 1,648,983 1,658,529 9,546
Fund Net Assets-Ending $ - % 1,820,256 3 1,820,256

Reconciliation to GAAP basis

Investad in capital assets, net of related debt 2,332,085
Accounts receivable 177,516
Inventory 28,765
Accounts payable (1C,104)
Caompensated ahsences {36,100)
Fund Net Assets - GAAP basis 3 4,312,388




CITY OF SCAPPQOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WATER S5DC EXPANSION RESERVE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ - % - -
Interest income 8,000 18,310 10,310
SBC charges 202,300 221,963 - 19,663
Long term debt proceeds - - -
Totai Revenues 210,300 240,273 29,873
Expenditures
Capital outlay 125,000 23,317 101,683
Debt service
Principal G03003 54,016 54,016 -
[nterest GO3003 68,565 64,766 3,799
Principal S03603 120,545 120,545 -
Interest S03003 37,257 37,257 -
Contingency 138,316 - 138,316
Total Expenditures 543,699 299,901 243,798
Excess(deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures {333,399) {59,628} 273,771
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 95,330 §5,331 1
Transfers out (61,868) {61,867) 1
Net income(loss) {299,937) {26,164) 273,773
Fund Net Assets-Beginning 299,937 398,671 98,734
Fund Net Assets-Ending $ - % 372,507 § 372,507

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
Invested in capital assets, net of related daht 1,211,675
Fund Net Assets-GAAP Basis $ 1,584,182




CITY OF SCAPPOOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVEMUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

AIRPARK WATER IMPROVEMENT FUND

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovemmental $ 72,354 % 73,216 % 862
SDC charges - 5G,697 50,697
Interest income 2,800 57,140 54,540
Total Revenues 74,954 181,053 106,099
Expenditures
Debt service 124,106 124,106 -
Contingency 75,119 - 75,119
Total Expenditures 199,225 124,106 75,119
Excess(deficiency) of revenue
over {under) expenditures (124,271} 56,947 181,218
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 51,752 51,752 -
Transfers out - - -
Net income(loss) (72,519} 108,699 181,218
Fund Net Assets-Beginning 72,519 72,889 370
Fund Net Assets-Ending $ - $ 181,588 ¢ 181,588
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, CREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DUTCH CANYON WATER LINE REPLACEMENT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amournts (Negative}
Revenues
Interast income 3 12,000 % 10,837 3 (1,1863)
Long term debt proceeds 1,879,250 - (1,879,250}
Total Revenues 1,891,250 10,837 {1,880,413)
Expenditures
Capitai Qutiay 2,137,662 42,312 2,095,350
Contingency - - -
Total Expenditures 2,137,662 42,312 2,095,350
Excess(deficiency) revenue over
{under)} expenditures (246,412) {31,47%) (277,887}
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 5,000 ' S,000 -
Transfers out - - -
Net income(loss) {241,412) (26,475) 214,937
Fund Net Assets-Beginning 241,412 261,317 15,505
Fund Net Assets~Ending $ -G 234,842 % 234,842

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
Accounts payable | {25,512)
Fund Net Assets-GAAP Basis 3 209,330
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actuai Positive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
Revenues
Charges for services 855,250 991,079 135,829
Interest income 20,000 23,3086 3,308
Infrastructure fees 50,000 29,544 (20,356}
Misceilaneous 1,000 - (1,000}
Total Revenues 526,250 1,044,030 117,780
Expenditures
Personal services

Salaries 313,149 283,746 28,403
Overtime 3,025 2,054 971
Health insurance 50,116 654,529 25,587
Retirement benefits 52,210 54,022 8,188
Social security 39,226 1,864 17,362
Workers' compensation 10,368 8,175 2,193
Total Personal Services 518,094 434,390 83,704

Materials and services
Building/facility maintenance 10,644 3,874 6,770
Building lease - 3,417 (3,417)
Egquipment maintenance 31,514 39,941 (8,427}
Maintenance agreements 1,606 1,609 {3}
Vehicle maintenance 4,873 6,226 {1,353
Fuel/Qil/Lube 6,500 4,812 1,688
Office supplies b 5,240 4,669 1,571
Operational supplies 6,197 3,858 2,339
Shop maintenance supplias 484 286 198
tab supplies 3,079 4,536 (1,457}
Chemicals 1,935 2,161 (226)
Electrical operations 120,000 94,160 25,840
Utilities 7,296 7,416 {120)
Electrical operations pumps 6,960 5,222 1,728
Cantractual/professional 156,500 145,521 140,879
Miscellaneous 250 19 231
Property tax 1,550 1,015 535
Insurance - 781 (781)
Travel/training 4,675 5,356 (721}
Dues/fees/subscriptions 4,560 3,996 564
Publications/notices/advertisement 900 1,303 (403}
Uniformysafety 3,291 3,051 240
Equiprrent rental 1,360 1,884 {524)
Total Materials and services 380,414 345,152 35,262
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CITY OF SCAPPOOSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGOR

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SEWER FUND {Cont'd)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Budget
Budgeted Actual Positive
Amounts Amounts (Negative)
Debt Service
Principal B32001B 5,324 5,324 -
Interest B92001B 2,681 2,681 -
Principal B95001C 5,964 £,964 -
Total Debt services 14,965 14,969 -
Capital outlay 40,500 23,147 17,353
Contingency 350,636 - {350,636)
Total Expenditures 1,304,613 817,658 {214,317}
Excess(deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures {378,363) 226,372 604,735
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (37,610} (37,610) -
Net income(loss) (415,973) 188,762 604,735
Fund Net Assets-Beginning 415,973 456,765 40,792
Fund Net Assats-Ending $ -5 545,527 % 645,527

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,857,989
Accounts receivable 146,742
Inventory 545
Accounts payable (10,995)
Compensated absences payable (21,400)

Fund Net Assets-GAAP Basis $ 2,618,408
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CITY OF SCAPPOQSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULEL OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SEWER SDC EXPANSION RESERVE FUND

Revanues
Systemdevelopment charges
Interest income

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Capital qutiay
Contingency

Total expenditures

Excess(deficiency) revenue over

(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net income(loss)

Fund Net Assets-Beginning
Fund Net Assets-Ending

Recanciliation to GAAP Basis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Fund Net Assets-GAAP Basis

Budget
Budgeted Actual Paositive
Amounts Amounts {Negative)
$ 146,440 ¢ 199,230 3 52,790
53,800 65,136 11,336
200,240 264,366 64,126
500,000 45,143 454,857
396,747 - 396,747
895,747 45,143 851,604
(696,507) 214 223 518,982
{11,353) (11,353 -
{707,860} 207,870 518,983
707,880 1,330,380 622,520
L ©% 1,538,250 3§ 1,538,250
93,471
$ 1,631,721




2007-2008
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
20602-2003
2001-2002
Prior years

Tatal

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE

COLUMBIA COUNTYY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Interest

Balance Levy Discounts & Balance
7/1/2007 2007/2008 Adjustments Collections 6/30/2008
$ - $ 1,515,015 ¢ (38,240) $ 1,398 421 % 85,354
71,2086 - 175 43,568 27,816
23,449 - 1,180 10,851 13,778
12,447 - 1,025 7,282 6,190
6,085 - 1,075 5,945 1,215
1,454 - 106 812 789
516 - 157 326 347
826 - 313 226 913
$ 116,024 $1,519,015 4 (34,206) $ 1,464,431 § 136,402
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COMMENTS OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF OREGON MINIMUM
STANDARDS FOR AUDITS OF OREGON
MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS



450 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD A R Telep_hc?ne (541) 686-8777
SUITE 155 CrResOR PROFESSIONAL Facsimile (541) 686-8779

EUGENE, OREGON 87401-8078 E-mail: gpcepa@gregorpe.com
VEERE CorRPORATION john@gragorpe.com

becky @gregorpe.com
chunil@ gregorpe.com
wmb @ gregorpe.com
bilit@ gregorpe.com
linglin@gregorpe.com
cheisea @ gregorpe.com

COMMENTS OF THE INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CREGON
MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR AUDITS OF OREGON MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Scappoose

33568 E Cotumbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon $7056

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Scappoose, Oregon, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2009,

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statermnents are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation,

The State of Oregon Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal_Corporations
requires that we make comments and disclosures relating to our review of fiscal affairs and
compliance with legal requirements and the applicable provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes
as foilow:

» A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the City’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential witl
not be prevented or detected by the City's internat controf.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
resuits in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial
statements will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internat control,

Our consideration of internal control was for the lmited purpose described in the first
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above, However,
we identified the following deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a significant
deficiency:
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Qversight of Financial Repaorting Process

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for the fair
presentation of the financial position, resuits of operations, cash flows and disclosures in the
financial statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The City does not have a system of internal controls that weuld enable management
to conclude the financial statements and related disclosures are complete and presented in
accordance with GAAP. As such, management requested us to prepare a draft of the
financial statements, including related footnote disclosures. The outsourcing of these
services is not unusual in cities of your size and is a resylt of management’s cost benefit
decision to rety on our accounting expertise rather than incurring this internal resource cost,

e The amount and adequacy of collateral pledged hy depositories to secure the daposit of
public funds.

» The legal requirements refating to short-term and long-term debt,

o Compliance with the requirements of Local Budget Law in the preparation, adoption angd
executicn of the annua!l budget for the current fiscal year and preparation and adoption of
the annual budget for the subsequent fiscal year.

¢ The legal requirements relating to insurance and fidelity bond coverage.

« Compliance with the laws and regulations of programs funded wholly or partially by other
government agencies,

o The legal requirements covering the use of revenue from motor vehicle fuel tax.

» The poticies and procedures pertaining to the investment of public funds.

« The legat requirements covering the awarding of public contracts and construction of public
improvements,

» To our knowledge no independently elected official was accountable for collecting or receiving
cash.

The results of our tests disclosed no other instances of noncompliance by the City with the
foregoing requirements. Howaver, it should be noted that our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of noncompliance with these requirements.

Additionally, we make the following comments:

= The accounting records were adequate for the audit.

< Our review of the insurance and fidelity bond was limited to the existing coverage for the
period. We are not experts in insurance and make no representation as to the adequacy of
coverage.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Council and management of the
City and the State of Oregon, and is not intended to be used and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

GREGOR PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
Certified Public Accountants

Uohn Gregor, Prégident

Eugene, Oregon
January 19, 2009
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